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Technical Support for Increasing Energy Efficiency in Existing Buildings (RFP 15-402)
Questions and Answers
This document is a compilation the Energy Commission’s final responses to the questions asked by attendees during the Pre-bid conference (held March 28, 2016) as well as additional questions received by the deadline to submit questions.
Administrative Questions
1. Would winning this RFP create any conflict of interest for the recipient with regards to participation in future solicitations for research grants related to energy efficiency in existing buildings or related topics? 
A:   While it seems unlikely that a conflict-of-interest would arise between a contractor working under an agreement stemming from RFP 15-402 and future CEC solicitations for building energy efficiency RD&D under the EPIC program, such potential conflicts-of-interest will have to be evaluated on a case-by-case basis during the course of the EPIC solicitation process.  
2. Is there a page limit to the proposal?
No.
3. Are there bonus points awarded for the contractor team being all or partially located in California?
A:  No.
4. If a bidder submits a proposal with no DVBE, is the bidder disqualified, or would the bidder just not receive the points associated with the DVBE requirement? 
A:  Section V. of the solicitation states: “This RFP is subject to a mandatory certified DVBE participation of at least three percent (3%).”  The solicitation also states: Bidders must complete Attachments 1, 3 and 4 to document DVBE participation. If Bidder does not include these forms or if the forms do not document the minimum commitment required (or more), the Bid is considered non-responsive and shall be rejected.”
Failure to commit to 3% or more will result in rejection of the proposal prior to the technical evaluation.  The additional DVBE points are bonus points for going above and beyond the minimum commitment.  
5. Would it be acceptable to submit the hard copies of Section 1 (Administrative Response) and Section 2 (Technical and Cost Proposal) as separate bound documents?
A:  Yes, although we prefer one bound document.
6. Does the Word version need to be submitted as a single Word document or can it be submitted as multiple Word documents?
A:  The different attachments can be submitted separately on the CD or flash drive.  Attachments should be submitted in the format in which they were provided in the solicitation.
7. Page 4 of the RFP states that the deadline to submit proposals is 5:00 p.m. on April 18, 2016.  However, page 16 of the RFP states that proposals must be delivered no later than 3:00 p.m..  Please confirm the time by which proposals must be delivered.
A:  The correct time is 5:00 p.m., and this will be updated in an addendum to the solicitation.
8. What do we assume in figuring out the percentages that certain subcontractors or partners will be putting into the effort, when we don’t know what the work authorizations are? 
A:  We are going to use our best judgment when evaluating proposals. We do want to see breadth and depth however; we understand the limitations of the RFP process. Explain if any work for a certain task will cost much more than the total available for the RFP. 
9. When you search registered small businesses on DGS’s website, there isn’t a feature to generate a certificate. 
A:  We are looking for a simple printout which identifies a certification number and the entity’s name, not the actual certificate. 
10. Will the PowerPoint presentation be posted? 
A:  Yes, we will post the PowerPoint, solicitation documents and pre-bid participants to our website.
11. For scoring, there is a minimum score for the total, but is there a minimum per section? 
A:  No. 
12. Are you going to pick one firm with expertise in the residential, commercial and public sector or multiple firms?
A:  We can only award to one prime contractor.
13. Can the winning firm add firms that submitted proposals but were not selected?
A:  You can add a subcontractor with modifications to the agreement.  However, to prevent any sort of future modifications, we recommend building a team for the proposal that meets all of the desired qualifications.  
14. Is this a time of materials with no upset limit?
A:  All Energy Commission agreements are time-and-materials. 
15. Does an organization have to be registered with any special entity in California to provide services to the Energy Commission? 
A:  Yes, all corporations, limited liability companies (LLCs) and limited partnerships (LPs) are required to register and be in good standing with the California Secretary of State in order to enter into an agreement with the Energy Commission. 
16. Is there a total budget available?
A:  Total possible funding is one million dollars, but how much will be used is unknown since this is an as-needed agreement. 
17. If an organization is not a prime, is it required to register with the California Secretary of State?
A:  The registration requirement is for the prime contractor only.
Technical Questions
1. Are the deliverables listed in the Schedule of Deliverables and due dates section the full extent of expected reports and studies, or are additional reports and studies expected to occur as well? The number of bullets under each task’s long descriptions does not match the number of deliverables listed under each task in the schedule table. 
A:  No, the deliverables listed are exemplary only.  The Work Authorizations that will be issued by the CEC after the contract agreement is in place will specify the deliverables that the Contractor will be responsible for.
2. Can the prime submit more than three references?
A:  Yes, but excessive numbers of references will not add value to the bidder’s proposal in terms of points awarded to the proposal by the evaluation team.
3. Can subcontractors submit their own set of references or do they count towards the three references for the prime?
A:  Subcontractors do not need to provide references.  Relevant subcontractor experience and knowledge should be communicated in Section 3: Approach to Tasks in the Scope of Work to demonstrate the relative strengths of the bidders’ teams.
4. Does the CEC have any task/ work orders poised and ready to go? Which one or two of the topic areas or issues listed on pages 3, 8, and 12-13 are likely to be first out of the gate? Are there any preeminent existing examples for any of the listed activities that epitomize the CEC’s expected needs?
A:  No, the CEC does not have drafted work authorizations to implement the scope of work included in this RFP.  The Background section on pages 7 and 8 of the RFP and the Technical Areas bullets on pages 8 and 9 of the RFP are the only guidance available at this time.  Please note that the third bullet regarding disadvantaged communities will be deleted from the final version of the RFP. 
5. Are the support funds expected to be spent equally on Task 2 and Task 3, or is the expectation that one Task will need much more support than the other?
A:  Please see answer to number 7, below.
6. Page 13, Task 3:  What primary data sources does the CEC expect will be used for this work?
A:  Work authorizations issued to implement Task 3 will use the Clean Energy Jobs Act (Proposition 39) data at a minimum.  For building sectors other than schools, the CEC may gain access to energy use and building characteristics data from other sources, though there are no specific data sources already identified. 
7. Page 23, % of Agreement Effort:  Since this is more like an RFQ than an RFP, can the CEC provide an estimate of either the Task 2 versus Task 3 budget split, or even better, a percent of budget estimated for each of the task bullets on pages 3, 8, and 12-13?  This could help provide some consistency in the calculation of the weighted, loaded hourly rates, if subcontractors are lined up with the tasks they would support.
A:  For the purposes of completing the weighted loaded, hourly rates, please assume that all bulleted efforts listed under both Task 2 and Task 3 are weighted equally.  Please note: this does not mean that the CEC will issue work authorizations in the future that reflect equal weighting of the tasks listed in the RFP scope of work.
8. In the RFP pages 14-15 there are examples of deliverables with due dates. 
Do you expect the bidder's description of its approach to a task to include proposed deliverables with proposed due dates?
A:  No.  The approach to a task should include descriptions of how and why the bidders’ teams are best qualified to perform the work, including brief explanations of relevant work completed by team members.  Assumptions for how the work will be further specified can be made by the bidders to better explain the core competencies of the bidders’ teams.
9. Does the scope cover industrial buildings as well?
A:  No.
10. Under the Experience and Qualifications section on page 18 of the RFP, it states that résumés should be provided for all team members listed.  Would it be acceptable to include résumés in an appendix to Section 2 (Technical and Cost Proposal)?
A:  That is acceptable.
11. What are the differences between Task 2, Key area 2: Existing buildings evaluation and development of energy efficiency metrics and Task 3: Existing Buildings Energy Savings Metrics and Analytics? 
A:  Key area 2 is comprised of more literature review, needs assessment, and gap analysis type tasks, while Task 3 would recommend which data analytics approaches are to be used and further develop those approaches.  We may authorize a work authorization that covers both tasks. 
12. You clarified that Task 3 is not a tool development task.  If a contractor has an idea of a tool, what is the final deliverable for a tool?
A:  This will be clarified in work authorizations, but things such as: functional requirements for  tools to be built later and analytical methods embodied in a software script are examples.
13. How do barriers to access of energy efficiency measures in disadvantaged and low-income communities and issues affecting building construction contractor performance relating to energy efficiency measures fit into the scope of work?
A:  Both these bullets will be removed from the amended RFP. They are not within the scope of this RFP.
14. Do contractors have to be in-state?
A:  No.
15. What energy and building stock data will be available for analysis? 
A:  We are not sure to the extent. However, we do expect to use data for schools that the Energy Commission has for the California Clean Energy Jobs Act (Proposition 39) program.  There may also be data within the Energy Commission’s Assessment Division and California Public Utilities Commission programs.  
16. AB758 has very limited information about achieving Zero Net Energy (ZNE) for existing buildings; should market analysis and technical support incorporate ZNE expertise? 
A:  Some. We are not going to do a lot of work in this area. ZNE for existing buildings is a much larger scope than what this RFP covers given the available funds and current priorities. 
17. All three key areas for Task 3 are about data on energy use and potential energy savings. Do you know any sources that take into account the behavior or comfort preferences? Is there any data about what the potential is that doesn’t include ‘take-backs’? 
A:  We are trying to figure this out. It’s not just energy use data, but also thermostat set-points, demographics, etc. to figure out what we should expect in terms of how behavior or comfort preferences affect energy use. No, we do not know of any specific data sets at this time. 
18. [bookmark: _GoBack]Does the Energy Commission anticipate being able to get large datasets from utilities disaggregated to individual building bills, to support this analysis?
A:  We currently anticipate using pre- and post- energy use data gathered for the California Clean Energy Jobs Act (Proposition 39) program.  However, there is potential for partnerships with other agencies.  Please note that as a state entity we have to be cautious that contractors having access to data will not have an advantage in the marketplace.
19. Is there any interest in calibrating modeled results against measured data?
A:  Yes. 
20. Who will be the end-user for the benchmarking and savings visualizations?
A:  We intend the public to be the end-user. 
21. Will individual building analysis be required?
A:  Yes. Some of our work will require this. An example is looking at one particular school’s pre- and post-energy use to determine the impact of specific interventions or contractor performance. 
22. Is there an incumbent for this work?
A:  No. 
23. What suggestions do you have for locating partners?
A:  We will post a list of contacts who participated in this pre-bid workshop in-person or online. This list will be available on the CEC’s solicitation page. 
24. Can you think of a non-residential utility program that fits with the RFP?
A:  Retrofit programs, appliance rebate programs applied to commercial buildings, and retro-commissioning programs are a few examples. 
25. Can two firms partner to submit one RFP?
A:  Yes. One of the firms would have to be prime contractor and the other would need to be a sub-contractor. 
26. The RFP indicates that the Commission will manage all workshops and solicitations? Will all meetings be in Sacramento? 
A:  There may be workshops for our benchmarking efforts. We don’t expect there to be too many workshops, and very few to no workshops being hosted outside Sacramento. 
27. Can a prime contractor submit only one proposal or multiple proposals, each with a different team of sub-contractors? 
A:  We are not looking for contractors to compete against themselves. Please submit one proposal per prime contractor. We would not prohibit a prime for being a sub-contractor or a sub-contractor for being on multiple proposals. 
28. Is there any anticipation for ongoing funds or need for technical support after the funding period closes?
A:  Yes. Our existing buildings efforts have a minimum funding level of $500,000 per year, unless changed, but we will re-solicit bids to spend future money. 
